
 
 

Knox County Board  
Member Packet 

 
Regular Meeting of the Board 

April 22, 2015 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This packet contains the meeting’s agenda, accompanying 
documentation, and minutes of recent standing committee meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compiled by Scott G. Erickson 
Knox County Clerk 



KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN  JANE SMITH 
SARA VARNER    PAM COON 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE OF REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
OF THE KNOX COUNTY BOARD ON APRIL 22, 2015 

 
 

In accordance with action taken at its March 25, 2015, regular 

meeting, the Knox County Board ordered that members of the Knox County 

Board will hereby meet in regular session at 6:00 p.m. on April 22, 2015, at 

the Knox County Courthouse, 200 South Cherry Street, Second Floor Main 

Courtroom, Galesburg, Illinois. 

Along with this notice is the agenda of matters to be discussed at said 

meeting.  The agenda can also be accessed through our web site at 

www.KnoxClerk.org. 

 

DATED: April 17, 2015            ______________________ 
                    Scott G. Erickson 

Knox County Clerk and 
Ex-Officio Clerk of the Board 

 
 

 
REMINDER 

 
There will be a closed session to be held at 5:30PM prior 
to the regular Board meeting to discuss personnel and 
insurance issues. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 1 

 

Knox County Board 
 

Regular Monthly Meeting – April 2015 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois 

Main Courtroom, 3rd Floor 
April 22, 2015 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

Special Events 

5:30 p.m.  Closed Session for Personnel and Insurance. 
   
Opening Ceremonies 
6:00 p.m.  Call to Order (Chairman) 
   

  Roll Call (Clerk) 
   

  Declaration of Quorum (Chairman) 
   

  Proclamation (Sheriff) 
   

  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America (Chairman) 

   

  Invocation (Rev. Dan Siems of the First Baptist Church, 
Galesburg) 

   

  Additions to the Agenda (for discussion only) 
 
Public Comment 
 
Consent Agenda * (R/C) 
Item 1 Approve Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on March 25, 2015. 
Item 2 Approve Claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the 

Meeting of April 23, 2015 and other claims for per diem 
from Meetings. 

Item 3 Presentation Sales tax and various taxes for month of January 2015 in 
the amounts of $85,835.63 and $16,711.76 and public 
safety tax in the amount of $72,483.68. 

   
Items for the Chairman 
Item 4 Approve R/C Proclamation of May as Motorcycle Awareness Month. 
Item 5 Approve Appointments to Oneida-Wataga Fire Protection District of 

Tim Carlson and Bob Hennenfent. 
Item 6 Approve R/C Approve County Audit for FY2014. 
   
Report – Committee on Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk 
Item 7 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 8 Approve R/C Resolutions on Deeds of Conveyance. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 2 

Item 9 Approve R/C Approve Annual Dues for NACo. 
Item 10 Approve R/C Approve Health/Dental Insurance for 2015-2016. 
   
Report – Building Committee             
Item 11 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 12 Approve R/C Approve Purchase of Chairs for Courtroom Renovation. 
   
Report – Committee on Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Mary Davis Home, and Animal Control. 
Item 13 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
   
Report – Committee on Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder 
Item 14 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
Item 15 Approve R/C Appointment of Administrative Adjudication Hearing 

Officers of Wayne Statham and Chad Long. 
   
Report – Committee on Highway and Landfill 
Item 16 Presentation Monthly Report from Committee. 
   
Reports – External Committees Assigned to Board Members
Item 17 Presentation Knox County Board of Health (Davidson) 
Item 18 Presentation Galesburg Convention and Visitors Bureau (Bondi) 
Item 19 Presentation 9-1-1 Committee (Knapp) 
Item 20 Presentation Knox County Area Partnership for Economic Development 
Item 21 Presentation Prairie Hills Resources Board (Johnson) 
Item 22 Presentation United Council of Counties (Davidson) 
Claims Against the County – R/C 
Item 23 Approve R/C Opening of Budget for Line Item Changes. 
Item 24 Approve R/C Approve Budget Line Item Changes to Budget. 
Item 25 Approve R/C Claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of       

March 26, 2015 through April 23, 2015 (ordering that 
invoices be accepted and approved and that the County 
Clerk and County Treasurer be authorized and directed to 
issue County Warrants in payment of the bills) 

   
Statements of General Concern 
Item 26 Presentation Statements of General Concern from Board Members 

(Conducted in voting rank order.  No Debate) 
   
Announcements 
Item 27 Presentation The next regular meeting will be held on Wednesday, May 

27, 2015, 6:00 p.m., at the Knox County Courthouse, 
Galesburg, IL 

   
Closing Ceremonies 
Item 28 Presentation Adjournment of meeting until next scheduled meeting of 

the Board. 
 
* CONSENT AGENDA:  All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the 
Board and will be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Member or citizen so requests; in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will 
be considered separately. 
 
** Action item to be used only if previous Motion to Remove from Table is approved. 



Visit www.KnoxClerk.org for more information Page - 3 

 
VOTING CHART:  R/C = Roll Call Vote; Voice = Voice Vote; 2/3 = 2/3rds Vote 
 
PLEASE NOTE:  Except for emergency personnel, please turn off all cellular telephones and paging 
devices during the meeting. 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
March 25, 2015 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF KNOX ) 

 
 Proceedings of the Regular Meeting of the Knox County Board held at the Knox County 
Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois on Wednesday, March 25, 2015 at 6:05 p.m. 
 
 The Meeting was called to order by County Board Chairman Brian Friedrich and upon 
roll call the following Members reported present: 
 
    District 1 Lyle Johnson  

District 2 Greg “Chops” Bacon 
District 3 Barbara Foster 
District 4 George Knapp 
District 5 Brian Friedrich 
District 3 Pamela Davidson 
District 4 David Erickson 
District 5 Ricardo “Rick” Sandoval 
District 1 Richard Conklin 
District 2 Robert “Bob” Bondi 

    District 3 Trisha Hurst 
District 4 Shawn Pitman 

    District 5 Jeff Jefferson 
 
And those absent:  District 1 Cheryl Nache 
    District 2 Russell Nelson 
 
 Also present were State’s Attorney John Pepmeyer, County Treasurer Robin Davis, and 
County Clerk Scott Erickson. 
  
 Chairman Friedrich led the Members in the pledge to the flag. Rev. Dave Scholl of the 
Galesburg Rescue Mission delivered the invocation. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for additions or deletions to the agenda. Member Bacon asked 
that agenda item # 10, approve Health Department pay increases, be removed from this agenda. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for public comments. Knox County resident Gene Holt 
addressed the Board concerning a safety issue near his home at the intersection of County 
Highway 2 and County Highway 6. Recently two individuals died at this intersection as a result 
of a traffic accident. In 1970 loved ones were also killed at this same location. At times kids have 



2 
 

taken down the warning signs He would suggest that signs be placed which warn, “Dangerous 
intersection ahead.” Motorists need to be warned to slow down. 
 Mike Holt also addressed the Board concerning this same subject. This is an emotional 
subject for their family. Five lives have been lost at this location. There is a stop sign for the east 
and west traffic. However, the north and south traffic does not stop. It would be inconvenient but 
would increase safety if the north and south traffic also stopped. This family would really like to 
see something done to improve the safety of this intersection. It is horribly unfortunate that five 
lives have been lost at this intersection. He expressed his thanks to the Board for all that they do. 
 Judy Johnson, AFSCME representative, addressed the Board about the proposed wage 
increases for some employees of the Knox County Health Department. This issue has been 
removed from this agenda for this Meeting. The news from Springfield is that county funding 
will be reduced. The State is already behind in their reimbursements to the Mary Davis Home 
and the Nursing Home. The County cannot afford pay raises of 23%. Those employees should 
get the same salary increases as other County employees. All County employees have taken on 
additional duties. It wasn’t that long ago that the County Board was fighting with the City of 
Galesburg Election Commission and the Veteran’s Assistance Office over proposed salary 
increases. This is not about one department or one person but what is best for our County. 
 Randy Lynch, AFSCME staff representative, also addressed the Board about the 
proposed wage increases for some employees of the Knox County Health Department. He is not 
happy with what he is hearing. In negotiations not that long ago, they fought long and hard to get 
the raises that they got. Everybody deserves a raise but this is excessive. During union 
negotiations other County employees were told that the County could only afford a 1.5% wage 
increase and this is so much more. According to this suggested wage increase one employee over 
the next four years would receive a 23% increase. Another employee would receive a 62% 
increase over four years, and the other employee would receive a 25% over four years. This is 
not fair. The union employees had to settle for an increase of 1.5%. There is no justification for 
this much of a salary increase. The Health Department will be going through some changes. The 
State budget is coming up. Governor Rauner is demanding serious cuts in all of these budgets. 
The County Board cannot justify approving these excessive salary increases. According to an 
opinion from the Attorney General’s Office, the County Board does have the right to not grant 
these salary increases that are not included in the budget. He asked the County Board to 
reconsider this subject as it will be a huge issue if it goes through. 
 Dick Allen spoke of his support for John Vanier.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Bacon to approve the 
following items of the consent agenda: 1) minutes of the Regular Board Meeting on February 25, 
2015, 2) claims by Members for per diem and mileage for the Meeting on March 25, 2015 and 
other claims for per diem from meetings, and 3) sales tax and various taxes for month of 
December 2014 in the amounts of $117,047.89 and $20,888.33 and public safety tax in the 
amount of $100,212,14. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and 
Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich read aloud the Proclamation for Child Abuse Prevention Month to be 
observed during the month of April. A copy of this proclamation was presented to Sara Robinson 
of CASA (Court Appointed Special Advocates). She also shared information about the Blue 



3 
 

Ribbon Task Force. Other social service agencies also support this proclamation. The Hands 
around the Courthouse event will be held April 23 to draw awareness of child abuse in our 
community. Judy Gunseth from Child Advocacy was also in attendance and thanked the Board 
for their continued support.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 
appointment of Jon Vanier to the Galesburg Sanitary District. Roll call vote is recorded as 
follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, 
Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Erickson and seconded by Member Jefferson to approve 
the appointments of Ty O. Landon and Daniel J. Gentry to the Williamsfield Fire Protection 
District. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, 
Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). 
Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Pitman to approve the 
appointment of Brenda Dexter to the Williamsfield Sanitary District. Roll call vote is recorded as 
follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, 
Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Bondi to approve the 
ordinance increasing the rate of the public safety tax. A copy of this resolution is included in the 
packets. County Clerk Scott Erickson explained that this ordinance had to be rewritten to satisfy 
the criteria of the Illinois Department of Revenue. The procedure has changed from what was 
previously required. This resolution mirrors what was previously submitted with some changes 
to the context. This tax increase is to start in July. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, 
Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 The Finance, Insurance, Treasurer, Judicial, and Clerk Committee report was presented 
by Committee Chairman Greg Bacon. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included 
in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Johnson to approve to bid 
and buy for departmental hardware for the financial software conversion. Information 
Technology Coordinator Andy Rowe explained this involves the purchase of new computer 
software and hardware components such as scanners to run the new financial software which the 
Board has previously approved. Originally it was thought that the County could use existing 
scanners. However, that is not possible.  
 County Clerk Scott Erickson explained that these scanners will scan at a higher quality 
than what is possible with some of the existing multi-function units. This Kofax scanner scans at 
a higher graphic resolution which will be more compatible with the new financial software. He 
had worked with the financial software representatives and hoped to be able to utilize the 
existing scanners and hardware but it would not be nearly as efficient or secure. He 
recommended that these scanners be purchased. Mr. Rowe added that every department will 



4 
 

have one including the Mary Davis Home and the Sheriff’s Department. Roll call vote to 
approve to bid and buy for departmental hardware for the financial software conversion is 
recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, 
Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Johnson to approve the 
resolution calling for the Governor and General Assembly to protect necessary funding for the 
County Government. A copy of this resolution is included in the board packets. The UCCI 
(United Council of Counties) drafted this resolution and are encouraging all counties to pass this 
to advise Springfield not to take away the counties’ share of the income tax revenue. Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, 
Sandoval, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(11). Noes—(0). Pass—Erickson and Conklin—
(2). Motion carried. 
 
 The Building Committee report was presented by Building Committee Co-Chairman 
George Knapp. The committee minutes and the monthly reports are included in the packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Johnson to approve 
payment to Klingner for the Courtroom renovation project in the amount of $1,250.00. Specific 
information is included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, 
Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, 
and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Bacon to approve the 
final payment to MSI (Mechanical Services, Inc.) for the Courthouse radon mitigation 
installation in the amount of $3,624.00. Specific information is included in the packets. Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, 
Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Johnson to approve the 
purchase of gallery seating and juror seating for the Courtroom renovation project at a total cost 
of $29,210.00. Member Foster voiced her concerns about the cost of $561 per chair for gallery 
seating. That is excessive and the County should keep the existing chairs. She inquired if the vote 
could be divided between the gallery seating and the juror seating. County Clerk Scott Erickson 
responded that since it is all included on one bid, this cannot be separated. Member Foster stated 
that she is opposed to this and it is excessive. 
 Member Bacon stated that the attorney chairs are not included in the bid. This part was 
returned to the vendor to try to get a lower cost. The jury chairs will be on pedestals and will be 
able to be rotated and will have arms. The spectator chairs will not have arms. Both the jury 
chairs and the spectator chairs will be color coordinated to go with the new carpeting. Spectator 
chairs will be secured to the floor and will not move. 
 Member Jefferson added that the judges are contributing to the courtroom renovation 
project. He also thinks that this cost is a little excessive and yet the Board told the judges that the 
courtroom would be renovated.  



5 
 

 Member Bacon stated that the judges are contributing approximately $63,000 toward the 
courtroom renovation project.  
 Member Davidson also asked why the County cannot use the existing chairs.  
 Member Bacon responded that the new chairs will be better as they can turn. The whole 
jury box is being redesigned to make it handicapped accessible.  
 Roll call vote to approve the purchase of gallery seating and juror seating for the 
Courtroom renovation project at a total cost of $29,210.00 is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Bacon, Knapp, Friedrich, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and 
Jefferson—(11). Noes—Foster and Davidson—(2). Motion carried. 
 
 The Sheriff, Jail, Courthouse, Animal Control, Mary Davis Home, and Annex Committee 
report was presented by Committee Chairman Ricardo Sandoval. The monthly reports are in the 
packets. The County Jail currently houses 74 inmates and of that number 6 are federal inmates. 
The current census at the Mary Davis Home is 23 and 1 of those is a Knox County resident. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Davidson to approve 
the purchase of exterior security lighting for the Courthouse. Member Sandoval stated that this 
will go on the west side of the building. Member Davidson spoke of safety concerns and the need 
for exterior lighting. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and 
Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 The Nursing Home, Assessor, Zoning, GIS, and Recorder Committee report was 
presented by Committee Chairman Jeff Jefferson. These monthly reports are included in the 
packets. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Jefferson and seconded by Member Knapp to approve the 
resolution on transferring funds from the Knox County Nursing Home Tax Referendum Account 
to the Knox County Nursing Home General Account. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: 
Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, 
Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 Member Jefferson reported the census of the Nursing Home to be 138 residents. There 
was a recent article in the newspaper reporting their 5 star status, which is the highest rating that 
they can receive. He congratulated all the employees and the administration for this achievement.  
 
 The Highway and Landfill Committee report was presented by Committee Chairman 
Shawn Pitman. The monthly reports and committee minutes are included in the packets. Last 
month the landfill took in 4,839 tons with that total tipping fee of $172,580. Net profit is 
recorded as $15,547. However, as landfill funds were transferred to other funds, the landfill 
completed that month with a negative balance of $11,390.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Erickson to approve bids 
for the Motor Fuel Tax and Non-Motor Fuel Tax Materials, Section 15-XX000-00-GM for the 
Highway Department. Specific information is included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded 
as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, 
Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 



6 
 

 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve a 
local agency agreement for Federal participation, Salem Township bridge replacement, Section 
12-17121-00-BR for the Highway Department. A copy of this agreement is included in the 
packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, 
Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). 
Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Hurst to approve the 
Resolution for improvement by Knox County, Section 12-17121-00-BR for the Highway 
Department. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, 
Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). 
Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Knapp to approve the 
bid for replacement of un-loader trailers for the landfill. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: 
Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, 
Bondi, Hurst, Pitman and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Pitman and seconded by Member Hurst to approve the 
lease for a CAT transport truck for the landfill. Landfill Administrator Jerry Reynolds explained 
that recently he had received a phone call from Caterpillar asking if the landfill planned to 
replace any of their trucks this year. The landfill had planned to retire a truck later this year. The 
representative stated that if the landfill was willing to replace this truck early, the manufacturer 
would provide an extended three year warranty at no cost. This is a major item to be considered 
on a transport truck. The landfill did put this out for bid and did receive another bid from Centre 
State which sells International trucks and also received a bid from Caterpillar for the CAT truck. 
A lot of these components are the same in each of these trucks. This free three year warranty will 
save the County approximately $12,000 - $15,000 for that three year timeframe. Information is 
included in the packets. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, 
Knapp, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, and Jefferson—(11). Noes—(0). 
Pass—Friedrich and Pitman—(2). Motion carried. 
 
 Member Davidson presented the monthly report from the Knox County Board of Health. 
She stated that the agenda item having to do with approving Health Department pay increases is 
not really an increase as it represents new classifications. There will be additional personnel 
hired to fill new positions as the Health Department has been awarded several grants and require 
staffing to handle those grants. These are new positions, not increased duties added to previous 
positions. She feels that the Board of Health is doing a really good job. They are expanding 
services to adults not just children. She is glad to be a part of it. 
 
 Member Bondi presented the monthly report from the Galesburg Convention and Visitors 
Bureau. The Visitors Center is working with the City of Galesburg and the Illinois Department of 
Transportation to provide direct access to the Visitors Center off of Main Street. They will be 
starting in the next 60 days. It should be a beautiful change from that they currently have. They 
are working at restoring Channel 7 through the City to provide a community calendar along with 
the aspect of weather reporting. Several other entities are interested in contributing to that.  



7 
 

 Member Knapp presented the monthly report from the 9-1-1 Committee. He attended two 
meetings. The first meeting was with the Sheriff and the City officials of Galesburg. They 
reviewed some matters which needed to be discussed. There seemed to be agreement on most of 
these matters. They also discussed the issue of funding for 9-1-1. Currently the City of Galesburg 
pays 60% and the County pays the remaining 40%.  Originally this formula was based on 
population. However, population does not equal the number of phone calls. They are looking for 
the percentages to change. It could be 75% and 25%. The second meeting there was barely a 
quorum and not much business was transacted.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich presented the monthly report from the Knox County Area Partnership 
for Economic Development. They are working on a new logo and an update to the website.  
 
 Member Bacon presented the report from the quarterly meeting of the Western Illinois 
Regional Council. This is the group that previously worked with the County to secure grants for 
Courthouse renovations and boilers. This organization is almost a clearing house for grants and 
federals funds. They are instrumental in securing funds for the sewer projects in Bushnell and 
Abingdon. Over the last two or three years, they have awarded the County $200,000-$300,000. 
Currently they are working on another grant for the County. They are also working on awarding 
grants to property owners to drill new wells. This is in conjunction with local health departments. 
This grant is in the form of a low interest 20 year loan.  
 
 Member Johnson presented the monthly report from the Prairie Hills Resources Board. 
This past month a new program assistant was hired. They are currently involved with Rushville 
to try to obtain a bike trail to their park. They are in the process of ordering trees for the 
restoration on land that was obtained earlier in the year.  
 
 Chairman Friedrich presented the monthly report from the United Council of Counties. 
He had received a letter from the chairman saying that the Governor was going to address this 
organization. Governor Rauner spoke for about 2 hours and handouts of this meeting had been 
provided to the Members. This outlines the Governor’s short term and long term plans for 
Illinois. Chairman Friedrich really enjoyed attending this meeting. If other Members would like 
to attend these meetings they should contact him.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Bondi and seconded by Member Bacon to approve the 
opening of the budget for line item changes. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, 
Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Johnson and seconded by Member Pitman to approve 
specific budget line item changes to the budget. Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—
Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Bondi, Hurst, 
Pitman, and Jefferson—(13). Noes—(0). Motion carried. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Knapp and seconded by Member Johnson to approve 
claims against Knox County, Illinois, for the period of February 26, 2015 through March 25, 
2015 (ordering that invoices be accepted and approved and that the County Clerk and County 



8 
 

Treasurer be authorized and directed to issue County Warrants in payment of the bills.) Roll call 
vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Davidson, 
Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—(12). Noes—(0). Pass—Bondi—(1). 
Motion carried. 
 
STATEMENTS OF GENERAL CONCERN 
 
 None of the Board Members had any comments at this time.  
 
 The next Regular Meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 22, 2015, 6:00 p.m., at the 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Pitman to adjourn 
from this Open Meeting. Voice vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—(13). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned at 7:07 p.m. 
 



1 
 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
KNOX COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

 
April 13, 2015 

 
STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
    ) SS 
COUNTY OF KNOX ) 

 
 Proceedings of the Special Meeting of the Knox County Board held at the Knox County 
Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois on Monday, April 13, 2015 at 5:38 p.m. 
 
 The Meeting was called to order by County Board Chairman Brian Friedrich and upon 
roll call the following Members reported present: 
 
    District 1 Lyle Johnson  

District 2 Greg “Chops” Bacon 
District 3 Barbara Foster 
District 4 George Knapp 
District 5 Brian Friedrich 
District 4 David Erickson 
District 5 Ricardo “Rick” Sandoval 
District 1 Richard Conklin 

    District 3 Trisha Hurst 
District 4 Shawn Pitman 

    District 5 Jeff Jefferson 
 
And those absent:  District 1 Cheryl Nache 
    District 2 Russell Nelson 

District 3 Pamela Davidson 
District 2 Robert “Bob” Bondi 

 
 
 Also present was County Clerk Scott Erickson. 
  
 Chairman Friedrich led the Members in the pledge to the flag. 
 
 Chairman Friedrich asked for public comments. There was none. 
 
 Motion was made by Member Bacon and seconded by Member Sandoval to approve the 
sale of a portion of the Knox County Nursing Home farmland near Knoxville to Love’s Travel 
Stops and Country Stores Inc.  The sale will include approximately 20 acres of land and will be 
sold for the amount of $774,000.00.   Roll call vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—Johnson, 
Bacon, Foster, Knapp, Friedrich, Erickson, Sandoval, Conklin, Hurst, Pitman, and Jefferson—
(11). Noes—(0). Motion carried.  
 



2 
 

 The next Regular Meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 22, 2015, 6:00 p.m., at the 
Knox County Courthouse, Galesburg, Illinois.  
 
 Motion was made by Member Sandoval and seconded by Member Pitman to adjourn 
from this Open Meeting. Voice vote is recorded as follows: Ayes—(11). Noes—(0). Motion 
carried. Meeting adjourned at 5:40 p.m. 
 



PROCLAMATION BY KNOX COUNTY BOARD OF 
MAY AS “MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH” 

  
WHEREAS, safety is the highest priority for the highways and streets of our city 

and State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Great State of Illinois is proud to be a national leader in 
motorcycle safety, education and awareness; and 
 
 WHEREAS, motorcycles are a common and economical means of transportation 
that reduces fuel consumption and road wear, and contributes in a significant way to the 
relief of traffic and parking congestion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is especially meaningful that the citizens of our city and State be 
aware of motorcycles on the roadways and recognize the importance of motorcycle 
safety, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Members of A.B.A.T.E. of Illinois, (A Brotherhood Aimed 
Towards Education), continually promote motorcycle safety, education, and awareness 
in High School driver’s education programs and to the public in our city and State, 
presenting motorcycle awareness programs to over 100,000 participants in Illinois over 
the past four years; and 
 

WHEREAS, all motorcyclists should join A.B.A.T.E. of Illinois, Inc in actively 
promoting the safe operation of motorcycles as well as promoting motorcycle safety, 
awareness and respect of the citizens of our city and State; and 

 
WHEREAS, the motorcyclists of Illinois have contributed extensive volunteerism 

and money to national and community charitable organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, during the month of May, all roadway users should unite in the 

sharing of roadways within Knox County and throughout the Great State of Illinois. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, I, Greg Bacon, Chairman of the Knox County Board of Knox 
County Illinois, in recognition of the 28th Anniversary of A.B.A.T.E of Illinois, Inc and over 
558,000 registered motorcyclists statewide, and in recognition of the continued role 
Illinois serves as a leader in motorcycle safety, education and awareness, do hereby 
proclaim May, 2013 as 
 

“MOTORCYCLE AWARENESS MONTH” 
 

in Knox County and urge all motorists to join in an effort to improve safety and 
awareness on our roadways. 
 
Dated this 22nd day of April, 2015. 
 
 

 
       Hon. Brian Friedrich, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 

 
Scott G. Erickson, Knox County Clerk 
 



























































































































































































Page 1 of 1Knox County 
Payment Account Activity for March 2015

04/01/2015

$ 3,874.88BEGINNING BALANCE03/01/2015

Name On Account AmountAccountDate

 175.78Clark, Chapter 13 Trustee, Michael D2009-058003/12/2015

 350.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/13/2015

 300.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/13/2015

 50.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/13/2015

 600.00Perez, Mary2011-038903/17/2015

 60.00Perez, Mary2011-038903/17/2015

-350.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/18/2015

-300.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/18/2015

-50.00Thomas, Gary L.0814020V03/18/2015

-362.50Olivas, Susana M.0814039V03/18/2015

-1,087.50Olivas, Susana M.0814039V03/18/2015

-50.00Olivas, Susana M.0814039V03/18/2015

ENDING BALANCE $ 3,210.6603/31/2015



Knox County
Individual Account Status for March 2015

04/01/2015 Page 1 of 2

REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS

Clark, Chapter 13 Trustee Michael D Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(4/20/2014)

99-16-385-007

1691 BUSHMORE AVE., GALESBURG

2009-0580

2009, 2010, 2011Tax Years: 

LAWNVIEW ADDN LOTS 185 & 186Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 11,156.16

 2,220.0006/10/2013 Down Payment

 500.0010/11/2013 Payment

-1,460.1004/02/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

-1,259.9004/02/2014 Knox County Collector

 718.9001/13/2015 Payment

 97.9802/06/2015 Payment

 175.7803/12/2015 Payment

Total In Account $ 992.66$ 7,443.50AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

Perez Mary Account: 

Parcel: 

Prop Addr:

(7/20/2015)

99-11-307-010

631 PECK ST., GALESBURG

2011-0389

2011, 2012, 2013Tax Years: 

PECK & WOOD'S ADDN SUB OF LTS 16-24 E 35' LT 35 ALL LT 36 & W33' LT 37 BLK 3Legal: 

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 4,883.82

 900.0001/23/2015 Down Payment

 658.0002/17/2015 Payment

 600.0003/17/2015 Payment

 60.0003/17/2015 Payment

Total In Account $ 2,218.00$ 2,665.82AMOUNT STILL DUE ->

============== END OF REDEMPTION ACCOUNTS ==============



Knox County
Individual Account Status for March 2015

04/01/2015 Page 2 of 2

SALE ACCOUNTS

Olivas Susana M. Account: 

Parcel: Prop Addr:

(5/2/2015)

99-14-276-009 371 LOCUST ST.
GALESBURG, IL

0814039V

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 1,500.00

 1,000.0009/03/2014 Payment

 500.0009/03/2014 Payment

-362.5009/04/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

-1,087.5009/04/2014 Knox County Collector

-50.0009/04/2014 Knox County Recorder

 50.0010/17/2014 Voided Check# 1708

 362.5010/17/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

 1,087.5010/17/2014 Knox County Collector

-362.5003/18/2015 Knox County Tax Agent

-1,087.5003/18/2015 Knox County Collector

-50.0003/18/2015 Knox County Recorder

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

Thomas Gary L. Account: 

Parcel: Prop Addr:

(11/20/2014)

99-02-301-014 BATEMAN ST.
GALESBURG, IL

0814020V

TOTAL AMOUNT CHARGED $ 700.00

 700.0009/03/2014 Payment

-350.0011/10/2014 Knox County Tax Agent

-300.0011/10/2014 Knox County Collector

-50.0011/10/2014 Knox County Recorder

 350.0003/13/2015 Voided Check# 1721

 300.0003/13/2015 Voided Check# 1722

 50.0003/13/2015 Voided Check# 1723

-350.0003/18/2015 Knox County Tax Agent

-300.0003/18/2015 Knox County Collector

-50.0003/18/2015 Knox County Recorder

ACCOUNT CLOSED Total In Account $ 0.00

================= END OF SALE ACCOUNTS =================

TOTAL PAID FOR ALL ACCOUNTS $3,210.66 











































 

ASSESSMENT / GIS / ZONING REPORT 

April 8, 2015 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OFFICE 

      Our 2015 assessment year is in full swing.  Township Assessors have started 

working on their reassessing and our office has been busy with taxpayers bringing in 

their exemption renewals, asking a lot of questions regarding assessments, etc. 

      Our new employee started this past Monday, April 6th, and her name is Nancy 

Ekstedt, from Altona.  She replaced Suzie Foster, whose last day was March 20th.   

Because things have been so hectic for me in our office, with the Zoning Dept. starting 

to go into full swing, along with many major assessing issues starting to rise, Suzie has 

agreed to come back for a few days to help train Nancy.   This is a huge help to me. 

     

GIS 

     Bill’s report is enclosed. 

       

ZONING 

      The Zoning Board of Appeals did not have a hearing in April, and there will be no 

hearing in May. 

      I was contacted by States Attorney, John Pepmeyer last week via email in reference 

to the lawsuit on Hidden Hills Vineyard, LLC.  He informed me that the Judge had 

ruled in favor of Hidden Hills; the result being a court order to the Knox County Board 

to approve a Conditional Use permit.  The Knox County Zoning Resolution does allow 

a Winery in an Agricultural zoned district with a Conditional Use permit.  By 

definition, a winery is, “a place where wine is made.”  I have been told that this will be 

on the agenda at the April County Board Meeting. 

      Mr. Pepmeyer also informed me this week, via email, that attorneys Wayne Statham 

& Chad Long have agreed to become the Administrative Adjudication Hearing Officers 

for our Zoning Dept.’s Administrative Adjudication System.  This is awesome news.  

This needs to be approved by this Committee & the full County Board.  Then, after 

Board approval, I can talk with them, ask them go over & sit in on Tazewell County’s 

hearings & also talk with their Hearing Officer, we can get our forms created and 

hopefully get the process up & running by maybe June or July. 

      The Zoning Dept. is getting very busy.  With the weather warming up, (well, at least 

it was), taxpayers are starting to think about their spring & summer building projects.  

The Zoning phone barely stops ringing.  We have also had quit a few complaint calls.   

      The Zoning Office issued 16 permits for the month of March 2015 compared to 8 

permits for the month of March 2014. 
 

            Respectfully submitted, 

        Chris Gray, CIAO/CCO 

        Chief County Assessment Officer 

        Zoning Admin./GIS Dept. Sup 























 

 GIS Report    4/8/2015 

 
Surdex has acquired the majority of Knox County. Two flight lines in the far 

eastern part of the county have to be re-flown and the 500 acre brush fire in Henderson 

Township may have an impact on a line in that area. McDonough County has been flown 

and the eastern Hancock County has been flown. One plane flew part of McDonough on 

Tuesday, march 31st, and on May 1st they had 2 planes flying. They are currently 

processing and reviewing the acquired imagery and waiting for the next available 

window to finish the project. 

With the assistance of Jason from the Highway Department we were able to paint 

23 targets throughout the county. These will be used to measure the accuracy of the 

delivered product. Surdex has an online product, the Client Product Acceptance Tool 

(CPAT), which is used for quality checking the aerials. I will be able to go through the 

imagery, frame by frame, and mark any problematic areas for further review. It will be 

nice since Surdex gets the feedback immediately. Also, as the tiles are reviewed they get 

added to the progress window for reference. It will be a good, systematic, way to do the 

quality checking. 

In talking with Jason we generated some ideas for a collector app for the Highway 

Department. I would like it to be usable on a tablet or phone, with a simple interface. It 

will be used to note things such as damaged signs and potholes. I will get out there soon 

and finalize the requirements and start working on it. 

One data request has been processed and one is in the works. The Abingdon/Avon 

School District requested a map. They are trying to get some data from Fulton County to 

complete the map. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

Bill Lotz 































































































































KNOX COUNTY COURTHOUSE   200 SOUTH CHERRY STREET   GALESBURG, ILLINOIS 61401-4992 
(309) 345-3815   FAX: (309) 345-3801   WEBSITE:  WWW.KNOXCLERK.ORG 

 

THE COUNTY OF KNOX 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

 
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK 

 

SCOTT G. ERICKSON 
KNOX COUNTY CLERK 

 
SHIELA PARKIN   SARA VARNER 

PAM COON    JANE SMITH 
 

 

Knox County Board and Committee 
Meetings 

 
April 2015 

 
The following is a list of the meetings of the standing Committees for the Knox 
County Board for the above referenced month. 

 
 
Building Committee 
 April 7, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30PM 
 
Nursing Home-Assessor-Zoning-GIS-Recorder Committee 

April 8, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room. Starting at 6:00PM 
 
Sheriff-Jail-Courthouse-Mary Davis Home-Animal Control-Annex Committee  

April 13, 2015 at the Knox County Jail Conference Room. Starting at 6:00 PM 
 
Highway-Landfill Committee 

April 14, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 
Finance-Insurance-Treasurer-Judicial-Clerk Committee 

April 15, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:30 PM 
 (Bills available for review at 6:00PM prior to meeting.) 

 
Knox County Board Meeting – Regular Meeting 

April 22, 2015 at the Knox County Courthouse.  Starting at 6:00 PM 
 

Outside Committees 
 
Knox County Veterans Assistance Commission Meeting. 

April 13, 2015 at the Annex Conference Room.  Starting at 6:00 PM. 
  
Board of Health Meeting. 
 April 7, 2015 at the County Health Department. Starting at 7:00PM. 
 
 


	Board Packet Cover - April 2015
	Board Call - April 2015
	Agenda - April 2015
	County Board Minutes - March 2015
	Closed Board Minutes - March 2015
	Minutes - Special Board Meeting - April 2015
	Closed Minutes - Special Board Meeting - April 2015
	Action Item - PROCLAMATION - Motorcycle Awareness Month May 2015
	Action Item - Appointment Oneida Wataga FPD
	Finance Committee Minutes - April 2015
	Closed Finance Committee Minutes - April 2015
	Finance Committee Minutes - March 2015
	Finance Committee Packet - April 2015 Condensed
	April Finance Agenda00742620150414150012
	March Finance Minutes00742520150414145940
	Deeds of Conveyence00741720150414133934
	2015 Naco dues00741820150414134532
	Comcast Franchise Agreement00742120150414144251
	March 2015 Financials00743820150414151338

	Trustee Report - April 2015
	Action Item - Resolution on Deeds of Conveyance
	Action Item - NACO Dues
	Action Item - Health Insurance Information
	Building Committee Minutes - April 2015
	Sherrif Committee Minutes - April 2015
	Sheriff Department Report - April 2015
	Mary Davis Home Report - April 2015
	Nursing Home Assessor Committee Minutes - Aprill 2015
	Assessment Office Report - April 2015
	Information regarding Winery
	GIS Report - April 2015
	Highway Landfill Committee Minutes - April 2015
	Highway Department Report - April 2015
	Landfill Department Report - April 2015
	Action Item - Summary Sheets - April 2015
	Meeting Calendar - April 2015

	Return to agenda: 


